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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
wEhmE T EREE T BT BT BBEERT
Consolidated income statement AR
for the years ended 31 March BE3IA3TH IR
Revenue A 3,401.7 1,634.9* 1,509.1* 1,457.8* 1,034.8
Loss for the year 1R
Continuing operations RS E TS - (132.5) (145.8) (144.4) (402.7)
Discontinued operations L EEETS - (45.2) (4.5) 110.0 -
Net loss for the year I e 1R (189.8) (177.7) (150.3) (34.4) (402.7)
Interim dividend paid SRS - - - - -
Final dividend proposed FEIR AR S - - - - -
Special dividend paid EIRAFRIBE - — - 198.8 —
Consolidated balance sheet LGhEEARE
as at 31 March 3A3THER
Assets HiE 2,9584 26482 26519 19817  1,705.9
Less: Liabilities and B A&
non-controlling interests FEVELRE 45 1,728.6 1,729.1 1,631.3 996.7 1,175.5
Shareholders’ funds JE A < 1,229.8 919.1 1,020.6 985.0 530.4
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT i BT BT BT
Per share data TCE R
Loss 518 (0.182) (0.170) (0.144) (0.033) (0.385)
Interim dividend paid E IR HIBE - - - - -
Final dividend proposed HEIR A B, - - - - -
Special dividend paid RIS - - - 0.19 -
Shareholders’ funds JBCHRE 5 1.175 0.878 0.975 0.941 0.507
* On 26 January 2018, the Group announced the disposal of its entire optical retail and wholesale businesses (the “Optical

Business”) to its controlling shareholder (the “Disposal”). The Optical Business is classified as Discontinued operations. The

completion of the Disposal took place on 1 June 2018.

201841726 H > A4 [ 5 A 1) FLAR M of e 1 FLAR R MR g 2 1 Mt 38265 (TIRBEERS D) (R EEIR)) » T i 6 A S B IR A
BRI EEERS o B SIHD R20184F6 31 H S8 -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

The directors of the Company (the “Board”) submit their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 39 on
pages 173 to 176 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s businesses for the year ended 31
March 2020 and an indication of likely future development in
the Group's businesses are set out under Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 25 to 32.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2020, an important
event, the COVID-19 pandemic is affecting the Group and
its particulars are set out under Management Discussion and
Analysis on page 29 and Note 40 to the Financial Statements on
page 176.

Stelux is a company that cares about the way it does business,
the way we engage with our customers, our employees, our
suppliers, and others in general. Certain core principles underpin
the way we achieve our business objectives. We engage our
business partners and treat our employees in a fair, honest
and responsible manner to deliver sustainable results to our
shareholders.

Our vision to “Beautify and enrich lives through our products and
services” underscores the way we engage with our customers.
From our lifestyle products, ranging from trendy watches and
smart watches available at our physical and online stores, we
strive to deliver a personal shopping experience to our customers
engaging them through traditional and social media.

Customers looking for a wide brand selection will enjoy shopping
at multi-branded retailer “CITY CHAIN”, appealing to customers
who enjoy fashionable watches.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

As for the Group’s watch wholesale business, (in addition to
selling to City Chain), our customers comprise of a large network
of independent dealer stores spanning, Hong Kong, Singapore,
Brunei and Malaysia. Many of these dealers have been doing
business with the Group for an average period of over 25 years.
On average around 13% of our watch dealers operate at least 2
points of sales.

The Group is aware of the challenges brought on by underlying
structural changes in labour markets and employee expectations
towards work life balance and work fluidity. Hence our mission
to grow, respect and reward our employees as they develop
together with the Group becomes ever more important in
employee performance, satisfaction and retention. More details
on the Group’s employment policies can be found on pages 184
to 187 of the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

The Group’s suppliers are an important component of our
businesses, ranging from upstream component vendors,
assemblers and manufacturers to more downstream third party
brand principals and distributors, where third party brands are
sourced. Some brand principals have been partnering the Group
for over 20 years. Credit terms granted by the Group’s suppliers
range from 30 to 90 days. More details on our suppliers are
set out on pages 188 to 189 of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report.

Businesses require stable relationships with their lenders.
Without exception, the Group maintains strong and active
communications with its lenders who provide important trade
and other short and long term credit facilities. These lenders
range from local banks with strong local connections to regional
and global banks with solid reputations.

The Group faces certain principal risks and uncertainties,
described below (in no order of preference):

Risks arising from the COVID-19 pandemic, fluctuations in the
global and local economic environments, political tensions and
government activities impact our business performance and
appropriate strategies and measures are adopted to mitigate these
risks. For more details, refer to pages 29 of the Management,
Discussion and Analysis and Note 40 to the Financial Statements.

Due to the challenging business environment, (particularly in Q4
FY2019/20 with the outbreak of COVID-19), there was an added
focus on cash flow management with extra measures adopted
to strengthen liquidity. For more details, refer to the “Finance”
section of the Management, Discussion and Analysis on pages
29 to 31.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

With the deadly outbreak and extensive spread of COVID-19,
our operations came under severe strain. In addition to increasing
efforts to provide a safe work place for our employees, our
operations also faced varying periods of lockdowns, movement
control or mandatory social distancing orders in all the territories
where we operate, thus to a large extent our physical store
operations were suspended. Whilst these operations have since
resumed, it is not possible to assess with certainty the likely
impact from any resurgent waves of infection.

As inventory levels impact sales, profitability and cash flows and
with watch production lead times averaging 12 months, effective
inventory management is important. Systems are in place to
ensure key functions including merchandising, store operations
and finance closely monitor metrics like, inventory levels, aging
and turnover ratios. The Group adopts a conservative approach
to ordering and purchasing stock. There are also measures to
fasten stock turn and to facilitate disciplined capital management
including flexible cross regional clearance initiatives.

Securing the right store location is another principal driver
of performance and affects Group turnover and profitability.
Leasing, store operations, finance and senior management review
and assess location suitability using a checklist of pre-agreed
criteria. A dedicated leasing team focusses on leasing strategies
and activities in our major markets.

Product sourcing impacts on Group turnover, gross margins and
inventory levels. CITY CHAIN being a multi-branded retailer,
a proportion of products are sourced from third party brand
principals or distributors and there is no assurance that supply
will continue on terms acceptable to the Group. CITY CHAIN
has a dedicated merchandising function to focus on sourcing of
non-house branded products and maintaining good relationships,
particularly with principal suppliers. We look to form medium
to long term strategic brand partnerships with our suppliers,
working closely with them to facilitate the sharing of fashion
trends and market information. To stay attuned to customer
tastes and preferences, market research on social media trends,
competitors’ offerings and market visits are carried out regularly,
and customer feedback is closely monitored.

The Group's financial risks and relevant management policies
can be found in the “Finance” section under Management,
Discussion and Analysis on pages 29 to 31 and Note 6 to the
Financial Statements.

W =5 2R e A B R 17 1A 4R B X I (A | A
THEAE > RAARE 2 B BB JBE Sy« B T 58 5%
J1 5y R SR A AR BN Sh > FRAMALE T A
7 TR B 5 A T B O ) 5 T~ A2 o R A
O BRAR S > (RIAR R B2 5 BB 1 28
B o M ISR AR CRAR o (EAS AT RERE DI M ETA
TR 1 R BT R AR A RO

HUMF BOKF B~ BMAET) - BLE W
S 1 248 T R S ER BOE IR - ORI AR &
EHELSERE - FHCE L ARUMMRE S L%
WEHE - LA P - O R R S > )L
TR ~ AF B BRI BOE PR o ACAE F BRI
¥ AT S A B A R B R AT B
B R EAE FRACHE > LA PRIBUHIE RS [ Jok
R -

RE FHE R 7 70 3t 5 B s s 22 o — M ) S AR B
A9 SR BEAEEY Iy > Sl RSB I SRR R K o
AFEEERET > ELAEFHE - Nl - B R Ak
Y L R L ST T 1 Y A A L B
JBE o A [ BOA R I PR A BTG AR R
M S5 o

TEE it R U B4R R BRI AR BUKF
[ [H] G 1 20 22 R B 7 AN /D i P BR O 1
S =07 kAR B - R R R AR AT
B AT 32 W K o [IRE [H]JBR | AT BRI ET - SE
T BRI I 19 58 A W i L B R R e A R R 47
BHAR o AC S [ R BB i s o v T BEORG  t
AR P BAR A SR BLEL DI 54 > A S
W R TS Bk o PRI T MR E AT AR
S AT AL S B T 5 BT 5T ~ ST T
BB 5% Wi P R RE T ) B

A Bl A% 2 I U 5 S g A T A LR SRE ) 1 O
B A B oA R RS ] R 29 H 2 5531
B kM6

B () A RA A
2020 4F4F- )



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

Laws and regulations governing consumer protection,
employment and personal data have a significant impact on
the Group’s retail businesses. The Group has an in-house legal
function and where necessary seeks external legal advice and
training to keep abreast of latest developments in different areas
of law. There was no material non-compliance with the above
laws and regulations for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Climate change and other social issues may at times impact our
business decisions and actions. Our environmental policy is
based on 3R’s — to reduce, reuse or recycle whenever feasible or
practical so as to reduce our environmental impact. Changing
the way we consume the earth’s resources requires the collective
efforts of individuals and businesses together with supportive
and progressive environmental policies enacted by governments.
The different regions where we operate in have varying degrees
of commitment to environmental friendly legislation, regulations
and practices, and in places with less awareness, there are more
constraints on our performance.

Further reporting on environmental issues can be found on pages
180 to 184 under Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 44.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2019: nil).

The directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: nil).

A conditional special distribution in cash of HK$0.19 dollar per
share was proposed by the Board on 23 January 2018 relating
to the disposal of the Disposal group and was approved by the
shareholders in the special general meeting on 19 April 2018.
The special distribution, amounting to HK$198.83 million, had
been paid on 14 June 2018.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
of HK$388,000.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 March 2020 are
set out in Note 26 to the financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 1 of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividends to shareholders amounted
to HK$32.737 million (2019: HK$32.737 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws although there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws in Bermuda.

DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Joseph C. C. Wong (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Wallace Kwan Chi Kin (executive director and CFO)
Wu Chun Sang (independent non-executive)
Lawrence Wu Chi Man (independent non-executive)
Agnes Kwong Yi Hang (independent non-executive)

In accordance with Bye-law 110(A), Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
and Mr. Wu Chun Sang will retire by rotation at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). Dr. Agnes Kwong Yi Hang
being eligible, offers herself for re-election. Mr. Wu Chun
Sang has expressed his intention not to seek re-election as an
independent non-executive director as he has served the Group
in this capacity for nearly 16 years. The Company confirms that
Mr. Wu has no disagreements with the Board and nothing needs
to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company
due to Mr. Wu'’s retirement.
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DIRECTORS AND INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (continued)

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Joseph
C. C. Wong and Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin are also directors
in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong during the year and up
to the date of this report are: Ms. Caroline Chong Sue Peng, Mr.
William Hui Kin Wai, Ms. Stella Chow Yin Oi and Mr. Johnny
Chan Koon Kiu.

No director has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The Company’s directors have formal letters of appointment
setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment.
During the year, Mr. Wallace Kwan Chi Kin was eligible to
an annual bonus determinable under the terms of a KPI based
executive bonus scheme with respect to his management of
the Group. Provision for the bonus under the executive bonus
scheme for the year ended 31 March 2020 amounted to
HK$570,000 (2019: HK$820,000). Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong did
not participate in the executive bonus scheme for the year ended
31 March 2020.

Apart from the foregoing and continuing connected transactions
of the Group, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s businesses to which the
Company’s subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and
in which a director of the Company and the director’s connected
party had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Chumphol KANJANAPAS (aka Joseph C. C. WONG), aged 60,
was appointed executive director of the Company in 1986. Mr.
Wong undertook his tertiary studies in the United Kingdom.
He graduated from the University of Bradford with a B.Sc. in
Industrial Engineering (First Class Honours). Mr. Wong also holds
a M.Sc. (with Distinction) in Operational Research from the
University of Southampton. Mr. Wong is the Founding Honorary
Patron of the HKU Foundation for Education Development and
Research and has been serving the Board of Directors of the
Foundation for over 20 years. He is also a member of the Court
of the University of Hong Kong. He was awarded an Honorary
Fellowship by the University of Hong Kong in 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Directors

Wallace KWAN Chi Kin, aged 50, joined the Group in
November 2011 as Group Finance Director and was appointed
an executive director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company in July 2013. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of Social
Science Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He
also holds a MBA from the University of Manchester and a LLM
in Corporate & Financial Law from The University of Hong Kong.
He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and also a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwan has 28 years of experience in
financial management having worked at an international audit
firm and several listed companies.

WU Chun Sang, aged 63, was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2004. He is a Macau
Registered Auditor. He is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, UK and an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Lawrence WU Chi Man, aged 61, was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 2005. He graduated
from Bristol University, United Kingdom with a BSc(Eng) and
PhD in Aeronautical Engineering. He is a Professor at the
Department of Materials Science and Engineering at the City
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers (HKIE). He is also a Council Member of
the HKIE. He received the Taishan (Z L% %) Scholar award
from the Shandong Provincial Government in 2012.

Agnes KWONG Yi Hang, aged 60, holds a PhD in Molecular
Immunology from the University of Hong Kong and an MBA
from Troy State University in the USA. She was appointed an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2006.
She has a background in consulting with a major focus on
healthy and environmentally sustainable living.

Chief Counsel and Company Secretary

Caroline CHONG, aged 58, joined the Group in 1997. She
graduated from the University of Kent, United Kingdom with
a Bachelor of Arts (Law) (Hons) degree. She is admitted as a
Barrister in England and Wales, and, Hong Kong. She heads
Group Legal and Corporate Secretariat, and Group Human
Resources.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company and its subsidiaries did not set up or operate any
share option scheme for the year ended 31 March 2020 and up
to the date of publication of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors, and the Company’s chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies were as follows:

(@)  The Company - Ordinary shares

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of shares

BB
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REDTAZBRORABERD ZFE

Approximate

RIZER percentage of
Personal Family ~ Corporate/ Other the. t(ftal shares
Name of Director interest interest  trust interest interest Total In issue as at
31 March 2020
120205
3A31EZM
3L Ve HEBRTRAE
ESnA B AR5 REER R it Y ZBRED®
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 548,474,814 11,000 855,200 - 549,341,014 52.49
HA e (Note 1)
(Mtit1)
Notes: i

(1) As at 31 March 2020, Yee Hing Company Limited held 855,200
shares of the Company through its subsidiary Active Lights
Company Limited, 55% of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee
Hing Company Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, which
is the trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C. C.
Wong is a beneficiary of the Trust and was therefore deemed to be
interested in 855,200 shares of the Company through the Trust’s
interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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(1) 202043 H31H - FBA FR 2 w48 i H
/A H]Active Lights Company Limited 47 4222 #]
855,200/ 5 - Klayze Holdings Limited BAfE
F— TR E T (EFE)) 22 FE N Sk A 28
A RRA R T E AT B 55%HER o HAIHY
PR RAG R AN > WO i 5 ST e B
A B2 ) 2 HE A T B A2 71855, 200 M HBE 173
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued) EEoER )
(b)  Subsidiaries — Preference shares (b) B} feg 2 F — (B e
Approximate
percentage of
the total
preference
Number of shares shares in issue
BB as at 31
Corporate/ March 2020
Personal  Family trust Other 1202053 A
interests  interest  interest Interest Total 31HMLZEHE
= BITEER

BAEZ ZEEzR Flis Hidfx wy HHYEsH

(i) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares'
City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited —f& /1%’

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 200 - 208,800 - 209,000 99.52
BRI oA

(i) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — Preference shares?
Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited — &6/

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 600 - - - 600 16.67
FAI L

(iti)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited — Preference shares®
Stelux (Thailand) Limited —f&5E /13

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 5,100 - - - 5,100 100
FAI L

B () A RA A 10
2020 4F4F- )



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (continued) BB A

Notes: BFRE -

(1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the (1) City Chain (Thailand) Company Limited %7/ 7l
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right BRI BB 2 ] o B S I A 1 SR B A AR Y (8]
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. FERLE,  RLSTG SERE A 43 BUAT: ] oAt 232 )

2) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited is a subsidiary of the 2) Stelux Watch (Thailand) Company Limited 242
Company. Each preference share carries a right to vote and a right A B A R o BB B A SR AR
to an annual fixed dividend but not to any other profit sharing. 1] 5 FRCJR, > (BN R 4 AT AT HLAt 2 ) o

(3)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited is a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. (3)  Stelux (Thailand) Limited % A2\ &) (4 B 8§ 28 ) o
Joseph C. C. Wong is entitled to approximately 8.6% of the voting TR AR A R I 28 W BT REA 195,100 LB o
power of such subsidiary and an annual fixed dividend by virtue JBe = A % B0 Ja 2 ) R A8 . 6 %0 150 22 HE T 4 47 Y [i]
of the 5,100 preference shares held by him but not to any other FERLE, B3I SR S A AT HE A ) o

profit sharing.

Save as disclosed above, no directors, chief executive of B L SCRr g4 A - MRIEA A AR IERE S KON E
the Company or their associates have any interest or short A A5 565 3 5 2 A6k T "B A7 8 e T L Bk A 2 ] R
positions in the shares or underlying shares and debentures S PITAR b TiT2 F A T R 5 A By I AR HE ST ]
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within PR > AN RIS - R AT BN B ER S
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register F1% Mt 28 N\ ML S T A 2 ) A A A B 35 T (4
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise 8 I7 N 3 B R 91 55 XV BT ) 2 28) 1Y J% M4 BSORH B
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the 3 B A5 vh A AT AT HE 4 BRIR A ST A ) A T
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed HZ R AR SRR

Companies or no such interest or right has been granted or

exercised.

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT REZHFRPEXRHIATURE ZRRER
TO THE SFO

As at 31 March 2020, the following persons had interests in the R 8 25 2 3 B R 491 2 3 3 oAk 1T B A 2 6w it e
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the FiEk o BUF ALIR20204E3 431 HIR AL H 2 ik
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 3 SRR B e B A A

of the SFO:

1 1 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT BERSERPEFRHETFUREZRRER )
TO THE SFO (continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares of the Company REABRZRBREBRG 2T
Number of shares Approximate
RoEE percentage of
Personal Family  Corporate/ Other the total shares
Name of Shareholder interest interest trust interest interest Total In issue as at
31 March 2020
20205
3A31H2H
=| HEBITRAE

RERM A B ARz KE#E ErtiER Hituhgzs L ZBHNBEDL

Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong 548,474,814 11,000 855,200 — 549,341,014 52.49

A et (Note 1)

(Htat1)

Notes: W& -

(1) As at 31 March 2020, Yee Hing Company Limited held 855,200 (1) #A20204F3 431 H » 8 HA B2 v 78 1t 5 K} e
shares of the Company through its subsidiary Active Lights /v 7] Active Lights Company Limited A7 42 7]
Company Limited, 55% of the total issued ordinary shares of Yee 855,200/ 547 - Klayze Holdings Limited PAYE 7
Hing Company Limited is held by Klayze Holdings Limited, which — M ERE (MFRE)) 2 ZRE NS A A
is the trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Mr. Joseph C.C. PR T2 BT M 18 B 2 55%ME 6 o B A8 4G
Wong is a beneficiary of the Trust and was therefore deemed to be AERAEREZ Z N > SO A i 5 RE R S LA
interested in 855,200 shares of the Company through the Trust’s PR 7 22 M 2 M AT A5 F1855,200 By

interest in Yee Hing Company Limited.

B () A RA A 12
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

INTERESTS OF SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE PURSUANT
TO THE SFO (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of any
person (other than a director or chief executive of the Company
or his/her respective associate(s)), who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO as at 31 March 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES
The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or
sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable
to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 55%
— five largest suppliers combined 72%
Sales
— the largest customer 1%
— five largest customers combined 4%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers
or customers noted above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the directors of the Company, at least 25%
of the issued share capital of the Company was held by public
members as at the date of this report.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REEZRIPERGIAT URE 2 RS ()

M b SCAT P8 & 4h 5 202043 A31H » AL
)RR 4 A 2 I A6k 1 55 3 3 o A6k T B AE 2 B R
Pt sk o BB AT AL GERERARN
A Z e mATEBON B S B 2 W8 BR AR i A
U3 ) 22 Ry ESORH B R Hp A R R ER A

EESNBE - HEIED

AR TR A PRSI0 0 B [ AT T BB Ay © A ]
A AT A T 2 D A 1 S B e AR A R A
Tty o

TEEFRHER

AR T P L B A AR 4 T DR S A % i
BE AT

PRI
— Fe KA R 55%
— HRHEER A 5T 72%
PHEHH
—REF 1%
—HREF&GF 4%

A EFIANEER - WEZHRAN LA A
O T EAR 5 % L b 2 BRI M o A
R AL o

AN AR RS SR R BT A AT A A B A
W EEEB I B AT A A o

RHNBRIERE
RRIEA L R AT 28 PRS2 R B A Y R #E 55

W AR H AR R E BT P R D25%
HARNLRA -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The following continuing connected transactions are based on
normal commercial terms agreed after arms’ length negotiations
between the relevant parties and are in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group. The continuing connected
transactions are subject to the annual review, reporting and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and exempt from
independent shareholders” approval.

The Group’s internal audit function conducted an audit to verify
compliance of the following continuing connected transactions
with the Listing Rules and a summary of the audit findings were
presented to the independent non-executive directors as part of
their annual review of the continuing connected transactions.

Continuing connected transactions of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 March 2020

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent
non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed the
following continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
all these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The directors confirm that the Company’s auditor has issued
an unqualified letter in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed by the Group below in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

KRR S

AT 45 268 B W6 58 7 T 6 TR R T 4045 O 581
P AR Tih R B — R e SE AR G SR — i & H
WHEDTRRE T o R B I 2 B R B ST A VS W
B35 AT IR A laE g BRI (T E T A D) 56
TAATA B AFTEAR B ~ R L iRlE > I
FA IR S IR A HLHE o

AL B R RO T T > D A4
TEH A PR 1 2 o BEL 1 T R R B B A - R A R
ML L SR A 8 S IR AT B A 5 AR P B A
B2 o W — &0 o

AEEEE2020F3 831 B LM BEE 2 ER
B3

MR BRI 14A 5506 » A28 Rl 98 57 IR 47 L
RO LN SRR L S o B R A
LM

(@  TAAEEE B HH SER R AR R AL
(b)  #&— B R EE AP RKRT AL 5 )

(©  MRIFME %55 52 5 i HE Bl op ol 1% 2 F- & 2L
AT AR 2 R S RCRE B R 2 ) IR T S

R v T 2 A1 11 7 v B R S ME U] 28

300058 (15 5T) [ s B4 %5 G R B A% sl g B LA 2
EENE TAEN 25 EH S ZE 74055 & s LT
RIVRR S B 4 S8 BRI T 2 5 (M R SRR R 14 ) > AR )
T2 BRI 52 S AN 42 [ 55 8 B W 50 ) 1R AR 0

WRAERR > AR LTRSS 14A560% - AR
BICRT L A AR 4R 8 DA B R 0 R A B G AC )
P8R T FLRR A o AN Rl L ) 7 8 T o U 4 1 A2 3
il R AR I AS

B () A RA A
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) HERHMRS ()
Summary of the continuing connected transactions: BB A 2

1. Renewal of leases or licensing of office premises, parking 1. ENHESEFTARLESF - FEN

spaces and warehouse spaces kRRE
Income/
Connected persons Nature of transactions (expenses) Annual Caps Notes
BmAL REMHE WA (2 ) FELR B E
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT e AT L
Mengiwa Property Investment Limited Leasing of properties (7,883) (7,883) (i), (iv)
(“MPIL”) as Landlord ENELYE & (vii)
BATEY) SE B A R R (THIEE]) -
EREE
Active Lights Company Limited (“ALCL”)  Leasing of a warehouse and (1,115) (1,115) (i), (iv)
as Landlord licensing of parking space & (vi)
Active Lights Company Limited (TALCL)) 8 & £ i % {2 8 {37 7]
EREE
MPIL, as Licensor Licensing of parking spaces (362) (362)  (iii), (iv)
RN EIDN {2 E 37 2] & (vii)
MPIL as Principal Provision of management and 2,460 2,460 (v) & (vii)
B - AR property agency liaison
services
PR AL P R Wy SE A
gt ks A s
1 5 STELUX Holdings International Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BHERBMR S ()
Notes: MisE :

Bk 5B sE W A > AP 5 BT A T8 e 38 B AN |k
201943 721 H BT RIS 2 835 i HAR R R 25 -

All definitions in the notes below have the same meaning as referred to
in the Company’s announcement dated 21 March 2019 unless otherwise
indicated.

NS

Leasing of properties

(i)

On 21 March 2019, Stelux Holdings Limited (“SHL”) and
Thong Sia Watch Company Limited (“TSWCL”), wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, each individually as tenant/
licensee, entered into the Stelux House Renewal Tenancy Licence
Agreements 2019 with MPIL in respect of the following properties:

(i)

201943 H21H » BRE 2 () B RA W
(TSHL) Be AR vl A W B Jogg 2 i) 40 0 838 6 A B A
A (s ) (& AMBIEATE 7 A)
SR FEET 7201 94F B i 6 O B 000 19 ok
A BT

Premises A: whole of 27th floor and portion of 28th floor of L/E SN B L2 7R g K2 8 —
Stelux House B

Premises B: ~ portion of 21st floor of Stelux House LESGE BOGREEE FL2 1 — 5

Premises C: office unit number 2206A on the 22nd floor of L/ESe G ZE 02212206 AE Z HFA
Stelux House AL

Premises D:  storeroom 6A on the 16th floor of Stelux House WED : LR O 6M6AREE R

Premises E: storeroom 1B on the 17th floor of Stelux House WIZEE - LR O 7 BREEE

Premises F: storeroom 6A on the 22nd floor of Stelux House YIZEF - LR D22 e AT E

For Premises A, B, C, D, E and F , the term was for three years
from 1 April 2019 up to and including 31 March 2022.

The total monthly rental for Premises A, B and C amounted to
HK$637,470 (exclusive of rates, government rent and management
charges). The total monthly licence fees for Premises D, E and
F amounted to HK$19,440 (inclusive of rates, government rent
and management charges). All rents and licence fees are payable
monthly in advance in cash by the tenants/licensees on the first
day of each and every calendar month.

The monthly rents of all the above-mentioned premises were
determined on an arm’s length basis taking into account a
rental valuation conducted by an independent property valuer
dated 5 March 2019 and as such reflected the prevailing market
rental values/licence fees of the subject premises. Accordingly,
the directors considered the Stelux House Renewal Tenancy
Agreements 2019; and the TSWCL Tenancy Agreement were on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

In addition, SHL (as tenant of Premises A) has been granted
the naming right of Stelux House and each of SHL and TSWCL
has been granted an option (but not an obligation), to renew
the tenancy agreements for the Premises A, B; and the TSWCL
Tenancy Agreement with the landlord every three years for three
more years for a maximum of 9 years commencing from 1 April
2022 at the then prevailing open market rent.

WIZEA ~ WI2EB ~ WIZEC -~ WIZED - W EE YT
RS H20194E4 A1 HEFF 2202243 A31H
(BFZH) AL > A=A -

WA - W 2EB W CIHAE A T 4 45 v
637,47070 (RELFE 200 ~ B b J 3 PR ) -
WZED ~ W) 2EE W ZERRRE A R 2R AL RE B
HH19,44070 (G20 - BURF AR J A 2R 2) -
T FHL 4 Bl ml A R B B RS 4 Rl i A1
J& A H &S -

[l BT W A B A FLA T AR RN R RIS E
7 w1 e — 13 M8 57 ) FEAGAE Rl iR 2019473 A 5 H AE
HE I FEL A (S e AT R 2 2 W 2 AT T Bl 4
FEAT AR o UL > AL > 20194F B
Fp UL BT T e R S L B e 4 —
PIZEMEHGT S - JBATAH » WA AN R Kk
WA -

78k > SHLUE R W SEAZ TS ) SR T 2 v
Dz Ar A LR SHL R i 6% 45 1 s 2EA
Fo 2B Kom i Sk b A B W s M B BRI HE (1H
WETTAT) W A B T R BT A B
AR BRI R AN BRATI = 4F > H12022
FAHTH GRS B -

B () A RA A
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Leasing of warehouse and licensing of parking space

(if)

On 21 March 2019, Active Lights Company Limited (“ALCL") (as
landlord/licensor) and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(as tenant/licensee), entered into the Warehouse Leasing and
Licence Agreements 2019 with respect to the following warehouse
and parking spaces in Hong Kong:

(@ Warehouse space A at an industrial building in Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong (“Kowloon Bay Building”); and

(b)  One vehicle parking space at an industrial building in
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong at a monthly license
fee of HK$5,800 (inclusive of rates, government rent and
management charges)

for a term of three years from 1 April 2019 up to and including 31
March 2022.

All rental and licence fees are payable monthly in advance in cash
by the tenant/licensee on the first day of each and every calendar
month.

The monthly rental/license fees were determined on an arm’s
length basis taking into account the prevailing market rates in the
vicinity, which indicated that the renewal rentals/licence fees were
favourable to the Group. Accordingly, the directors considered
the Warehouse Leasing and Licence Agreements 2019 were on
normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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FEBBRS A
ByEE - ()

HERERFEM

(ii)

201943 H21H > Active Lights Company
Limited (TALCL)) (TE &y 23 /Fral N) RAA Fl—
i) 2 I A 7 (PE 2SS #E5F A N) 51572019
SRR AR S R AT A > A A LA i
18 AT

@  BOAEE LB ILREE i LR ([JLRE
BT ) Z A K

(b)  FUEIUEJLREE — I T2 K B 2 — {f Bl
PR B A e A R R 2 5,800
JC (BLIEZE 00 ~ BUM R A FRAER) -

T 1201942471 HERF 5202243 31 H (82
T2 H) B =AF

P AT REL < R vl e 2 R AL R T A
JEA B H B AT o

ARG Fal R 2 T AR R E - G
L WA B 2 BRAT T A > BB B AU AL
S/ FE ] AR A SR o (R - SR
Ky o 201O5F A JHOAR B K FF T Ifh ke b — AR 2 M
WIS BATAE - SRS AL F MR 2 %
HEFIEE



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Licensing of parking spaces

(iii)

On 21 March 2019, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company (each individually as licensee) entered into the
Carparking Space Licenses with MPIL with respect to the following
parking spaces:

(@) eight parking spaces at Stelux House at a total monthly
license fee of HK$30,100 (inclusive of rates, government
rent and management charges);

for a period of three years from 1 April 2019 up to and including
31 March 2022. The license fees are payable monthly in advance
in cash by the licensees on the first day of each and every calendar
month.

The monthly license fees were determined on an arm’s length
basis taking into account the prevailing market rates for parking
spaces in the vicinity. Accordingly, the directors considered the
terms of the Parking Space Licenses reflect normal commercial
terms and were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Group has been using the subject office premises, storerooms,
warehouses and parking spaces primarily for office, administrative
and storage purposes generally over a long period of time. In
order to avoid possible disruption to its business due to relocation,
the Group intends to continue to lease/licence the subject
office premises, storerooms, parking spaces and warehouses
following the expiration of the relevant leases/licences. The
directors consider it to be in the interests of the Company and
the Shareholders as a whole for the Group to continue with use
as long as the relevant rental/ licence fee and other terms are on
normal commercial terms or better to the Group so as to avoid
relocation and refurbishment costs which otherwise the Group
will have to incur.

The continuing connected transactions as set out in (i) to (iii)
above, have been aggregated for the purpose of classification
in accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, and the
aggregate annual cap for the financial year ended 31 March 2020
was approximately HK$9,360,000.

FEBBRS
BEE © ()

EEARFE

(iii)

201943 H21H » AN w25 T 4 & M i A #)
(%% AW A o 2 T ) BELI 3 5T 57 45 |7 T
Ik RS B DL A

(@) BOERRE L R HL A 35 ] FE T
2 #EH30,1007C (R AE £ 0 - BUN LT
JAE )

I A 120194E4 01 HEF 42022483 A31H
(BL453% B) B =4 o FFal i B 2% el 2 vl
ARG H DR & TN -

B R 2 T AT R IR E - SR R MR
R {5 A B AT AL A o RISt R
Ry o A HL AT o T A — M T SR A ARRT
S AR L AT A A ) RO R A

DS

AR W 25— ER I A B A S -
32 BN > —RERAE - ATER
g o bt SR8 Wl RE S S U e 8
AR B A BARLAY, 3 vl o 6 1 A AR B 1
R A B A W - AR - R A
[ o HEARRR o BRI ST 2 R
AR R i S R SO R R AR A A
) T el A 412 [ T A0 S AR OB R RAE R T - A4
AR T AR S AR A RO 2 BE B A 2 -

RPE LR A 14A.810 » DL EG) £ Gii) Fr#im s
5 By E A et A 2 KRB 2C 5 0 T E 2020
E3A 3T H IR B AR R I R ARAR A Sy T
9,360,0007T ©

B () A RA A
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

Provision of management and property agency liaison services

(v)

On 21 March 2019, Stelux Properties Agency Limited (“SPAL”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as agent, renewed
the management and property agency liaison services agreement
(“Service Agreement 2019”) with MPIL, as principal, for a term of
three years from 1 April 2019 up to and including 31 March 2022
for the provision of the following services (“Services”):

(@) contract administration with respect to contracts entered
into between MPIL and third parties from time to time;

(b)  property agency liaison and tenancy management;
(c)  management of the property manager of Stelux House; and
(d)  other miscellaneous administrative services.

SPAL has been providing the Services with respect to Stelux
House since 1998 and has accumulated relevant knowledge and
experience. MPIL is satisfied so far with the Services provided
by the Group, whilst the remuneration received by the Group
is enough to cover the relevant costs incurred by the Group in
providing the Services. As such, SPAL continued to provide the
Services to MPIL following the expiration of the preceding service
agreement on 31 March 2019.

Monthly remuneration was set at HK$205,000 per calendar month
(in the first year ended 31 March 2020) payable in advance in
cash on the first day of each and every calendar month. Parties
to the Service Agreement 2019 shall negotiate and agree in good
faith to increase the remuneration on an annual basis for the
second year and the third year by not more than 10% over that in
the preceding year with reference to the actual increase in costs
(including but not limited to the related staff salaries) incurred
by the Group with respect to the provision of the Services. In
the event that no agreement is reached between the parties in
negotiating the remuneration for the next year, the remuneration
shall remain unchanged.

The remuneration was arrived at after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and with reference to the estimate of the costs
to be incurred by the Company with respect to the provision of the
Services in the financial year ended 31 March 2019. Accordingly,
the directors considered the terms of the Service Agreement 2019
were on normal commercial terms and were fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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BOGHLEE 19984 L ) B i 6 Hh O AR A OE
Sz R Bk S A B o AR AN AR S [ 4
HERARTS > 7] R A 4 IS I 5 2 AR B AR 4R
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) BERBRS ()
Notes: (continued) MisE - ()
(v)  (continued) (v) (48)

With reference to the monthly remuneration under the Service
Agreement 2019, the Annual Cap Amount for this continuing
connected transaction was set at HK$2,460,000 for the financial
year ended 31 March 2020.

ZIRRIE201 9T IRF Wik T 2 A 4 > R%4a
BRI 22 2 # 2220204F3 A 31 H 1R BB B 2 4R B
T BR&FEF T B 2,460,000 7C °

Relationships between counterparties HLZ2 G ¥ 2 Bl

(vi)  ALCL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Yee Hing Company Limited (vi)  ALCLAZREATRAF ([F8HL ) 2 2 E WA T -
(“Yee Hing”). The Trust, of which Mr. Joseph C.C.Wong, is a HOAE S A B R A DS s L ST A
beneficiary, holds 55% of the total issued shares of Yee Hing. As B2 55% o A ERIN B E /AN FAES >
Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong is a director of the Company, each of TSCL M TSCLIZ ALCLE) B v A 9 S A= 2 BT A 7] >
and ALCL is an associate of Mr. Joseph C.C. Wong and hence is a W A S AN E] 2 B o
connected person of the Company.

(vii)  MPIL is a 30% controlled company held indirectly by (vii) AN F) RN 1 S A TR A W EERE I3 0% 1%
Mr. Joseph C. C. Wong, who is a director of the Company. HE o

2. Master Property Agreement 2. YEEHE
Notes: FisE -

All definitions in the notes below have the same meaning as
referred to in the Company’s announcement dated 26 January
2018, unless otherwise indicated.

WRIESCFE T A TR - & RIS SRR N BT R B
ANFHMA201841 H26 H Z A6 T i # B
ZER EIGIREE

Income/
Connected persons Nature of transactions (expenses) Annual Caps  Notes
AL REMHE WA (i) FELER Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000
LR LR
All of Chumphol Kanjanapas (also known Leasing, sub-leasing or 5,522 8,500 0
as Joseph C. C. Wong) and the Joseph licensing offices, shops
Family Members and warehouses by the
WA A N H AT R B Retained Group to the
Disposed Entities
R B 48 I o) A ) 5 AL
&~ B AT R e
RN V&g
All of Chumphol Kanjanapas (also known Leasing, sub-leasing or (7,415) (13,500) (ii)

as Joseph C. C. Wong) and the Joseph
Family Members

BRI SeE T AR R

licensing offices and shops
to the Retained Group by
the Disposed Entities

e by B B 1 O B R AR
&~ ST A
EVS ]

B () A RA A 20
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued) RERBR S ()

2. Master Property Agreement (continued) VSRR ()

* Disposed Entities includes Optical 88 Group (BVI) Limited, eGG 72018461 H » Bt P # @45 Optical 88
Optical Boutique Group Limited, Thong Sia Optical Group Limited Group (BVI) Limited * eGG Optical Boutique
and Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd disposed on 1 June 2018. Group Limited * Thong Sia Optical Group

Limited 5% Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd °

During the year ended 31 March 2019, as a result of the disposal R E 2019453 A31 H IF4EEE » R IR g
of the Optical Business on 1 June 2018, the Master Property CLR20184E6 01 H H & » BLEE (R E) 4 1R
Agreement was entered into between Stelux Holdings Limited (“the ST (5 S B ) Bk B BE B8 5 A Optical
Retained Group”) and the Disposed Entities, including Optical 88 Group (BVI Limited * eGG Optical Boutique
88 Group (BVI) Limited, eGG Optical Boutique Group Limited, Group Limited * Thong Sia Optical Group
Thong Sia Optical Group Limited and Optical 88 (Thailand) Limited % Optical 88 (Thailand) Ltd#T 3234 1
Ltd., commencing from 1 June 2018 and expiring on 31 March % MBS H2018%FE6 01 H A E £20214F3
2021. Under the Master Property Agreement, the Retained Group H31 AT o ARSEY A o (0 AR 1 B
and the Disposed Group will lease, sub-lease or license certain R R AR A FELE T A S L
offices, shops and warehouse to each other. and is renewable TR s ] SRy R [ R AR > M
upon mutual agreement between the parties provided that the HA 708 < B B 5 S A B R B R o
requirements of the Listing Rules related to connected transactions
shall be complied with in connection with such renewal.
(i) The office, shops and warehouse leased, sub-leased or (i) o B ] o ol B AL~ 0 R T {68 A O

licensed by the Retained Group to the Disposed Entities are NE R

as follows:

Number Region Nature Location

ECh #E {31 3k

2 HK Shop 65-68, Upper Ground Floor, Olympian City Il, 18 Hoi Ting Road, West Kowloon

il i VY JUREE 2 1 8 LI Ik — U1 T~ 5 65-685%
5 Macau Shop Em Macau, Rua da Palha N20 Beco da Palha
T Ji5 ffi N 1A, San Vo Res-do-chao F and G
7 SEA Shop JEM —shop
T
9 SEA Office 63 Ubi Avenue 1 #06-04 Singapore 408937
A
10 SEA Warehouse No.32, Jalan BP 6/6, Bandar Bukit Puchong 2, 47120 Puchong, Selangor Darul Ehsan
I
11 SEA Office G8, Jalan Puteri 7/13A Bandar Puteri, 47100 Puchong, Selangor Darul Ehsan, Malaysia
WA=
12 SEA Shop Mall Ngamwongwan — shop
Tl
13 SEA Shop Future Rangsit — shop
JE &

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Number Region Nature Location
fmoR & “E #hht
17 SEA Shop Central Rama IlI
I i
18 SEA Office CP27, Suite 2601-04, 26th Floor, Central Plaza, 34, Jalan Sultan Ismail, 50250 Kuala
b /NEH Lumpur, Malaysia
19 SEA Office 31 Ubi Road 1 #02-06 Singapore 408694
WA=
20 SEA Shop Ayuthaya Park
T i
The total monthly rental for the above properties approximated a2 B A R AR R A B s 1 460,0000T (O
HK$ 460,000 (exclusive of rates, government rent and AL 2 B~ BURM L R A R o FITAT 1 19/2087
management charges). All rents incurred during FY19/20 were BUFE R R M TR R Sh o B2y
paid during the year. The continuing connected transactions as PR AR R 28 ) CARE L TR RIS 1 4A 810 & UF
set out under 2(i) above have been aggregated for the purpose of FEEL > M 20204F3 H 31 H 1k I AR BE i 45 B
classification in accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, | BRABEHA) 74 W5 58,500,0007C °

and the aggregate annual cap for the financial year ended 31
March 2020 was approximately HK$8,500,000.

(i) Alternatively, the office and shops leased, sub-leased or (i) SeAh > g EER R EEEAE - oM
licensed to the Retained Group by the Disposed Entities are ST T A E BRI
as follows:
Number  Region Nature Location
R #h & HE ik
HK Shop Shop 27A, 27B & 27F, Level 3, Shatin Plaza, Shatin
1 s T YW HIYS 53827 A ~ 27B [ 27F9E6H
Shop
6 SEA S Rental for SH140 — Johor City Square (1347 Sqt ft)
Shop
14 SEA I i Future Rangsit Il - shop
Office 347, 349 Muang Thong Thani, Bondstreet Road, Bangpood Subdistrict, Pakkred District,
16 SEA W Nonthaburi 11120, Thailand

B () A RA A 22
2020 4F4F- )
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EExgREE

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
2. Master Property Agreement (continued)

The total monthly rent for the above properties approximated
HK$620,000 (exclusive of rates, government rent and management
charges). All rents incurred during FY19/20 were paid during the
year. The continuing connected transactions as set out under
2(ii) above have been aggregated for the purpose of classification
in accordance with Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules, and the
aggregate annual cap for the financial year ended 31 March 2020
was approximately HK$13,500,000.

The monthly rents of the above properties in 2(i) and 2(ii) above
were determined on an arms-length basis taking into account
publicly available information of similar properties leased, sub-

leased or licensed by independent third parties.

The above continuing connected transactions also constitute
related party transactions and are disclosed in note 36 to the
financial statements on page 167. For operating lease rental in
respect of the office premises, the amounts shown in note 36(a)(ii)
to the financial statements on page 169 were calculated at
effective rents in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.
PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

To the extent permitted by Bermuda law, and as permitted by
the Bye-laws of the Company, a director of the Company may
be indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any liability
incurred by the director save where incured or sustained through
his/her own wilful neglect or default, fraud and dishonesty. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout the
financial year and is currently in force at the time of approval of
this report.

The Company has also taken out and maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for certain legal actions brought against its
directors and officers.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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KEBEBRS

2. WIERBHEE

Py 2R B H A G ERA) By it 620,000 (48
FFEZERN - BUM MR R R o BRI 19/208
AR B A RO & CORAE R A o Rak2 (i) IE
PR A BRI 2 ) AR BT RIS 1 4A 810 & D
FHA > MIAZE 202043 H 31 H 1k BB B (1947 B
[ BRAEA A 2 55 13,500,0007C ©

a2 i) B2 i) FE A P 00 B TG TR T R
JI > S 2% R S R = O L~ AR s AT A A
KRR A P ERME I o

R A B 52 5 IR LA B3 5 R
167 BB R M FE36 N IEER o MbIFA
M EM AN S > 95169 E MBS R MEE36(a)i)
BTG 2 4 AU AR A A s T R A A A 1 o
WSk e R B R AL S A -

EEFFHRERYT

A A 2 AR R AR R EE S R A R R
FURFH R A o EAFAEAS 2w L P 0
ARAL - MRS H A SR A S0ER ~ K
W NI T B A o IS R v ) R R A S
A B JBE T B 2 Stk A R A IR AT 2 A K

A T 508 5 M A
BRI+ o L S A L T 0 A B
AR (0 -
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS (continued)

As permitted by the articles of association of the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong (“Hong Kong Subsidiaries”), a director
or a former director of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries may be
indemnified out of the Hong Kong Subsidiaries’ assets against
any liability incurred by the director to a person other than the
Hong Kong Subsidiaries or an associated company of the Hong
Kong Subsidiaries, to the extent permitted by law. Such permitted
indemnity provision is currently in force at the time of approval
of this report.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by RSM Hong
Kong who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

Ernst & Young resigned as auditors of the Company on 14 April
2020 and RSM Hong Kong were appointed by the directors
on 16 April 2020 to fill the casual vacancy so arising. Ernst &
Young confirmed that there were no matters in respect of those
circumstances that in their opinion needed to be reported to
the Shareholders of the Company. The Board also confirmed
that there were no other matters in relation to the resignation of
Ernst & Young that needed to be brought to the attention of the
Shareholders of the Company. There was a change in auditors
in FY2018/19. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM
Hong Kong as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Last but not least, | express my most sincere thanks and gratitude
to colleagues and staff members for their commitment, hard work

and loyalty to the Group during the year.

On behalf of the Board

Joseph C. C. Wong
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020

BESFRRERS (A

AR R e s B I 2 ) ([ M B S 2 ] 1) 2 AL
P A ) A A A A ) S T R A i
TR A > AT 7 i A 2 R L
HH A TR A I A B 2 ) s o R ) A B
AV S B3 o iR ) /ARh o i DEER LI
A o LA I R 01 5 1 A S 2 AL VAR S IR 75 2
AR

AT

BB R CKE B R SR G R ARBS EEA >
PRI R M B AR IR 8T -

R20204E4 A 14 H > ok Erslhl 7 BT B BHT A
DS FIREBEAT > 1R 20204E4 A 16 H 28 B SE & st
5 BT I 2 AT DA SR R AR T 2 A A i e
B o kg EHIm LS BT E R > A B T
BB AN w) I AR B s S M B e -
T IS R 4 B Ak B B S T B AT
B3 H TR AR TS A S BB EETE © 22018/19 8L
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

o Group Turnover down 29.0% to HK$1,034.8 million

J Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company of
HK$402.9 million

o Group Inventory down 33.4% to HK$373.0 million

For the year under review, Group turnover decreased by 29.0%
to HK$1,034.8 million (FY2018/19: HK$1,457.8 million) and a
loss attributable to Group equity holders of HK$402.9 million
was recorded as the worsened socio-political climate in Hong
Kong since June 2019, the ongoing US-China trade war and the
COVID-19 pandemic outbreak since late January 2020 exerted
severe pressure on the turnover and operating performance of
the Group.

The Group would have reported a loss of HK$145.8 million in
FY2019/20, after excluding the following non-cash items totalling
HK$257.1 million:

—  the accounting impact from HKFRS 16 Leases of HK$12.3
million

— an impairment of HK$76.9 million relating to right-of-use
assets mainly arising from retail stores with declined store
profitability

- an impairment of HK$66.3 million due to revaluation of
investment properties

- a stock provision expense of HK$95.4 million mainly
relating to slow-moving watch movements given the
uncertain watch retail environment

—  an impairment of intangible assets of HK$6.2 million due
to reducing recoverable amount

Compared to FY2018/19, the Group reported a loss of HK$144.7
million after excluding a gain on Disposal of the Optical Business
of HK$111.8 million recorded in FY2018/19 following the
completion on 1 June 2018, by the Group of the disposal of its
entire optical retail and wholesale businesses (the “Discontinued
Operations”) to its controlling shareholder and a loss from the
Discontinued Operations of HK$1.7 million.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Group gross profit margin was maintained at around 48.8%
(FY2018/19: 50.7%) as promotional strategies were implemented
to stimulate consumer demand and to reduce inventory to
enhance liquidity.

In FY2019/20, the Group continued with measures to further
reduce operating costs:

e selling expenses (excluding expenses related to investment
in brand building) fell 20.6% mainly due to reduced rental
expenses and other overheads at shops;

J Group general and administrative expenses fell by 21.6%;

o In FY2019/20, capital expenditures were significantly
reduced by 62.1% to HK$11.4 million (FY2018/19:
HK$30.1 million). Shop numbers fell by 15.5% in line
with Group strategy to close non-performing shops and
rationalise shop portfolio to improve shop productivity;

o The Group’s inventory declined by 33.4% vs that at the end
of March 2019 as a stock provision expense of HK$95.4
million for slow-moving watch movements was recorded
with a view that the consumption of watch movements will
remain stagnant given the current sluggish retail climate
and uncertainty around the magnitude of recovery of retail
and tourism in the near future. Excluding the impact of the
provision expense of watch movements, Group inventory
balance at the end of March 2020 declined by 16.3% or
HK$91.4 million year-on-year as a result of strict inventory
control and tightened stock procurement.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil per ordinary share).

A A [ 14 B R SR AR AR 49 48.8% (201 8/1 9 B4R
BE 1 50.7%) KT > Sl A AT AR &5 5 s LA 3k
TH B TR Bk A RS 4 TR o

A2019/20BA LA > A% 5 90 46 48 B it 45 T HE it
DAt — 25 Wi DA A

o BRSO (O S A R AR AT R B S0
N FE20.6% > £ A R A9 A 4 S RO
o B B S B

. SR — B AT RN F%21.6%

o JR2019/20 W BUFRE - B A BR S K W D
62.1%ZFHKS11.415 & (2018/1 9B BUAE -
HK$30. 116 &) - JEf%H FF15.5% » B
A A 15 8 PR 2% B0 O 9 T il S MR il AL
A DASR TR I 8 A 2 1 00 SRS HAAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

CITY CHAIN GROUP

The City Chain Group operates around 185 stores in Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China (the “Greater China”), Singapore,
Thailand and Malaysia together with on-line stores for “City
Chain” and “Solvil et Titus”.

The City Chain Group reported a 33.7% decline in turnover to
HK$773.3 million (FY2018/19: HK$1,166.5 million) and a loss
before interest and tax (LBIT) of HK$206.1 million (FY2018/19:
HK$98.0 million) with an impairment loss of HK$76.9 million
being right-of-use assets of the Group’s retail stores arising from
the adoption of the new HKFRS 16 Lease.

As part of the CITY CHAIN Group’s key strategy to shift to
an omni-channel model, we have continued to invest in our
e-commerce business. Due to COVID-19, we accelerated our
pace of investment, adopting the necessary infrastructure and
expertise, increasing allocation of marketing expenditure on
our online operations such as social networking platforms to
maintain quality interactions with consumers to boost online
sales and to enhance the online brand presence of CITY CHAIN.

Greater China

Turnover for CITY CHAIN operations in Greater China fell by
42.3% to HK$477.1 million (FY2018/19: HK$826.3 million)
amid a difficult retail environment in Hong Kong/Macau which
resulted in a wider LBIT of HK$209.2 million (FY2018/19: LBIT
HK$98.9 million). In line with our shop consolidation strategy,
27 shops were closed. An impairment loss of HK$71.9 million
being the right-of-use assets of the Group’s retail stores in Greater
China and a deficit in valuation of investment properties of
HK$29.5 million contributed to this wider LBIT.

Following streamlining operations, the operating expenses in
Greater China fell by 21.7% in FY2019/20. This falling costs
trend is expected to continue in FY2020/21.

Our online business in Hong Kong performed up to expectations
whilst cost efficiencies at our Mainland China watch e-commerce
business improved.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Southeast Asia

Before the outbreak of COVID-19 in Q4 FY2019/20, our
Southeast Asian operations in Singapore, Malaysia and Thailand
were generally impacted by weak sentiment during the year
due to declining country exports. Therefore, with less jobs and
lower variable income, consumers were more conservative with
spending. Since March 2020, the situation seriously worsened
when economic activities were severely disrupted by lockdowns
and movement controls imposed by individual governments as
our physical stores were temporarily closed.

Turnover at our Southeast Asian operations declined by
12.9% to HK$296.2 million (FY2018/19: HK$340.2 million)
with the number of shops falling by 6.6% due to the closure
of certain non-performing shops. Despite the challenging
business environment, with continuous efforts on cost control
and productivity improvement, our Southeast Asian operations
reported an EBIT (excluding exchange difference) of HK$3.1
million. (FY2018/19: HK$3.4 million)

Due to our quicker pace of investment online, we saw an
uplift in online sales together with a strengthening of our brand
presence on different online market place platforms.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT AND WHOLESALE TRADING

Turnover for this division comprising our supply chain and
wholesale trading subsidiaries decreased moderately by 10.2%
to HK$261.5 million (FY2018/19: HK$291.2 million) and a LBIT
of HK$65.0 million was posted. Excluding the provision expense
of HK$95.4 million for slow-moving watch movements, this
division reported a profit during FY2019/20, a decrease of 24.2%
compared with FY2018/19.

As the sole distributor for the “SEIKO” and “GRAND SEIKO”
brand of watches in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, Brunei and
Malaysia, our wholesale trading unit launched various marketing
campaigns, which were well received, and with prompt service
support promoted sell-through to retailers.

REgE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

COVID-19 AND THE SHORT TERM OUTLOOK

In the territories where we operate, all of our stores have
re-opened following the relaxation of controls by most
governments. However, the outbreak and rapid spread of
COVID-19 have caused seismic disruptions posing a significant
threat to the global economy and the duration and true extent
of these disruptions are uncertain, whilst closer to home here
in Hong Kong, we still continue to feel the impact of ongoing
socio-political tensions. These external conditions severely
impacted Group turnover in April and May 2020, and amid
such a challenging external environment, it is difficult to assess
the economic recovery for the remaining 1H FY2020/21.
The Group will continue to adopt appropriate measures to
meet the headwinds, including closely monitoring cash flow,
operating costs, capital expenditure, inventory management;
closing non-performing shops and applying for COVID-19
related government relief/subsidies. The financial impact of
cost containment measures will continue to be reflected in
FY2020/21.

OUR COMMITMENT TO CHANGE

We remain committed to an omni-channel business model and
notwithstanding the harsh external conditions will continue not
only to prioritise but also accelerate deployment of resources
in this area. Therefore, in the coming months, we will invest in
appropriate infrastructure to grow our online presence and also
enhance synergies between our online and offline businesses.

FINANCE

The Group’s capital management, currency and interest rate
movement are constantly monitored and reviewed by the
management of the Group to address and manage relevant
financial risks relating to the Group’s operations. The Group
maintains prudent treasury management policies to address
liquidity to finance both short-term and long-term working
capital needs for business operations. Funds are generated from
business operating activities and banking facilities in the form of
term loans and short-term trading facilities. Forecast and actual
cash flow analyses are continuously monitored. Maturity of assets
and liabilities and requirement of financial resources for business
operations are prudently managed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

Group gearing ratio was 88.6% (31 March 2019: 40.3%) with
shareholders’ funds standing at HK$530.4 million (31 March
2019: HK$985.0 million) and net debts of HK$469.8 million
(31 March 2019: HK$396.8 million). The net debts are based
on the bank borrowings of HK$651.4 million (31 March 2019:
HK$688.3 million) less bank balance and cash of HK$181.6
million (of the Group as at 31 March 2019: HK$291.5 million)
of which HK$54.6 million were pledged (31 March 2019:
HK$56.6 million). The bank borrowings comprised of HK$115.8
million repayable within one year and HK$ 535.6 million with
scheduled repayment after one year but repayable on demand
and were classified as current liabilities. The increase in gearing
ratio was due to the fact that certain non-cash expenses (such
as stock provision and impairment of investment properties,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets) were recorded during
FY2019/20, and thus reducing shareholders’ funds. The Group’s
cash inflow from its operations was HK$159.1 million. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases, the repayment of lease liabilities
is included in financing activities and therefore the cash inflow
from its operations increased. The unutilized banking facilities as
at 31 March 2020 was HK$192 million.

The Group’s major borrowings are in Hong Kong dollars and
mostly based on a floating rate at HIBOR or bank prime lending
rates. As major revenues of the Group are in Hong Kong dollars
and Macanese Pataca, the natural hedge mechanism was
applied.

As at 31 March 2020, the current assets and current liabilities
were approximately HK$718.1 million (31 March 2019:
HK$1,033.8 million) and HK$1,017.6 million (31 March
2019: HK$958.6 million), respectively. The current ratio was
approximately 0.71 (1.08 as at 31 March 2019). On the adoption
of HKFRS 16 Leases, the Group recognized the commitments
under operating leases for future periods as lease liabilities,
whereas, under the previous accounting standard, no such
liabilities were required. Therefore, the net current assets is
lower.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's total equity funds amounted
to HK$537.1 million.

Prior to the date of this report, the Group obtained a one-off
waiver from a bank from strict compliance with certain covenant
requirements of bank borrowings amounting to HK$429.697
million.

The Group does not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes.

The Group does not engage in speculative derivative trading.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group does not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

The Group does not have plans for material investments or
change of capital assets.

As at 31 March 2020, certain property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and bank deposit amounting to HK$640.4
million (31 March 2019: HK$712.3 million) were pledged
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group. Capital
expenditures was under control and reduced to HK$11.4 million
(FY2018/19: HK$30.1 million).

The investment properties were revalued by an independent
valuer as at 31 March 2020. An impairment loss of HK$66.3
million was recorded in the year ended 31 March 2020
accordingly.

The deferred tax asset balance decreased by HK$11.2 million
and this expense was charged to the income statement during
the year ended 31 March 2020. The decrease was mainly from a
decrease in tax losses recognised as deferred tax asset.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BB W R D

NUMBER AND REMUNERATION OF EMPLOYEES, EEZERMHE EEHEK BERESEI
REMUNERATION POLICIES, BONUS AND TRAINING HE
SCHEMES

The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on a regular B2 T DAL B K N B R T O A YE R
basis and remuneration packages are in line with market TR R B AR o S0 E BEA TR o AR
practices in the relevant countries where the Group operates. As 202043 A31HA1,12007 (201943 A31H -
at 31 March 2020, the Group had 1,120 employees (31 March 1,5501%) 18 B o 48 1 it 2E A K MR il A B 3R B £
2019: 1,550 employees). The Group offers KPI related bonuses (B SESBURTE e 2 e T HEMIIES -
to eligible employees based on the performance of the Group B F TR B HEAR B O B Bl B = R B RLR - BB
and the individual employee. The Group also provides related JeACHE

training programmes to improve the quality, competence and

skills of its employees.

Joseph C. C. Wong =AY
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer LI RATE A
Hong Kong, 26 June 2020 ik - 20204F6 26 H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B B R

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
STELUX HOLDINGS INTERNATIONL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Stelux Holdings International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 176, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

HEXEX (BB ARITRR

(8 FT R A ML 2 A R 2 A)

=R

AR HE (DR SRR T 5% ) DRt ot H44 2
176 B E 3 (BB A RA R ([HAR ] KH
B w (TR ) B 45 5 PSR R - IS4
W MR BIER2020F3 31 HW A Y E AR
KURBEZH ILEENGE SRR GS L2
Wik GAERSERNGARERER > U
B A MBS IR R M 5 (48 F E e R BOR M) -

EERE > S G AWM RERCRERT B G
OB (TR Er st B & 1) SR A 2 7 % TV i o v
Rl (7757 B st E ) ) BRI A T s e 35
L[R2 202043 A31 H B4 A BRI 8 23
HIEFRE SEENEGAMEEE R EE SR
B 0 B IREE A RMEDD B SRS Z AR
%J o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B3 B R

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. The key audit matters we identified are:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 EERE

Key audit matter
Net realisable value of inventories

The net realisable value of
inventories is identified as a
key audit matter because of the
magnitude of the inventories
combined with the judgements
associated with determining
the amount of allowance for
inventories.

As at 31 March 2020, the
Group recorded inventories of
approximately HK$373.04 million
net of provision for inventories
of approximately HK$296.961
million.

The write-down of inventories to
net realisable value was estimated
by management through the
application of judgement and the
use of assumptions.

During the year ended 31 March
2020, a provision for inventories
of approximately HK$91.004
million was recognised to the
consolidated income statement
based on management’s
assessment.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s
estimation and judgement applied in determining
the net realisable value of inventories included:

- Understanding the inventories
allowances/write down policy of the
Group;

- Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy
of the inventory ageing reports; and

- Evaluating the key assumptions and
estimates applied by management to
determine the provisioning percentages
applicable to individual ageing categories
of inventory by comparing to current year
and historical sales trends.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 BERE

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment on
property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Refer to Notes 17 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The impairment of property, plant
and equipment, and right-of-use
assets is identified as a key audit
matter because of the significant
judgement involved in assessing
the amount of impairment of
property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group
had retail store assets recorded
under property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
of approximately HK$13.199
million and HK$146.823 million,
respectively.

The carrying amount of the retail
store assets is written down to
their recoverable amount when
the assets carrying amount
exceeded their estimated
recoverable amount.

Management determined that
each retail store is a cash-
generating unit and monitors
their financial performance for
the existence of impairment
indicators, such as stores making
a loss and early closure of stores
before the lease term.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management's
assessment process for identifying impairment
indications include:

¢ Understanding management’s process for
identifying impairment indicators;

¢+ challenging the judgements made by
management in identifying impairment
indicators;

¢ Obtaining the cash flow forecasts prepared
by management, understanding the major
assumptions adopted in the cash flow
forecasts for each cash-generating unit and
checking arithmetic accuracy of the forecast
calculation;

¢+ Comparing the major assumptions such
as growth rates, budgeted sales and gross
margins to historical results and evaluating
their reasonableness in light of current and
expected future market conditions; and

¢ Evaluating the sufficiency of the disclosure of
the impairment assessment by management
in the consolidated financial statements.
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B2 EERE

Key audit matter

Impairment assessment on
trademarks

Refer to Note 21 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The impairment of trademarks is
identified as a key audit matter
because the assessment which is
based on past performance and
management’s expectations for
the future market development
involved significant judgment and
estimates.

As at 31 March 2020, trademarks
of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$48.262
million.

Trademarks with an indefinite
useful life are carried at costs and
are not amortised.

Management tests annually
whether the trademarks suffered
any impairment by considering
the economic benefit to be
generated from trademarks. The
recoverable amount is determined
based on a value-in-use
calculation. This calculation used
pre-tax cashflows projections
based on financial budgets
prepared by management.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in relation to management's
impairment assessment on trademarks include:

¢ Understanding from management the
business plans associated with these
trademarks;

o Assessing the appropriateness of impairment
method used and evaluating key assumptions
such as growth rate and discount rate
applied by management with the assistance
of our in-house valuation specialists; and

¢ Evaluating the sufficiency of the disclosure of
the impairment assessment by management
in the consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 BERE

Key audit matter
Going concern assessment

Refer to Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 March
2020, the Group incurred a net
loss of HK$402.684 million and,
as of that date, the Group had net
current liabilities of approximately
HK$299.541 million. These
conditions may create doubt
about the Group’s ability to
continue as going concern.

The Group's financial statements
were prepared on a going concern
basis. The directors’ assessment in
respect of going concern is set out
in Note 2.

The going concern assessment is
identified as a key audit matter
as significant management
judgement is involved in
determining whether a material
uncertainty exists and in
estimating the Group's future cash
flows and funding requirements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our procedures in respect of the directors’
assessment of going concern included:

Obtaining an understanding of the inputs
and key assumptions of the cash flow
projections prepared for the purpose of the
going concern assessment;

Challenging the inputs and assumptions
used in the cash flow projections by
benchmarking them against historical trends
and data and observable external economic
data;

Assessing the availability of unused banking
facilities during the forecast periods by
inspecting relevant documentation and
evaluating whether the facilities were
sufficient to meet the Group's funding needs
with refence to the cash flows projections;

Performing sensitivity analysis on the cash
flow projections;

Assessing the possible mitigating actions
identified by management in the event that
actual cash flows are below forecast;

Challenging the directors’ assessment that
there was not a material uncertainty in
relation to going concern based on our
understanding of the Group’s expected
liquidity requirements during the forecast
period; and

Assessing the appropriateness of the
disclosures included in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the Other
Information. The Other Information comprises the information
included in Management Discussion and Analysis (but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon), which we obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, and Report of the Directors and Environmental,
Social and Governance Report, which are expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the Other Information and we do not and will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the Other
Information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s
report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

When we read Report of the Directors and Environmental, Social
and Governance Report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to the Audit committee and take appropriate action considering
our legal rights and obligations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

J Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, B AL T B g A SR TE T o FAM e TR
we determine those matters that were of most significance in THBAWER G B R R Bt i iy % R
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current J R S A R T o FRAM A A B A o v
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these FIH - BRIFEREEBIR AR A RS L
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes TH o BTN S LR OL T o AR A BETE AR
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely A7 S % v A o T Y T R A AR Y
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be INRFIE > AP E AN EAE R T R IE o
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the

public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this tH H A 7 A BT A 1 B R E H A AR B

independent auditor’s report is Mr. Liu Eugene. L1 Pinta S
RSM Hong Kong PSS ey TR 9
Certified Public Accountants B EFTIm
Hong Kong Tk
26 June 2020 20204F6H26H
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mElaER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%20204:3 431 H 1L

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
FsE BT AT
Continuing operations FEEEXK
Revenue A 8 1,034,794 1,457,779
Cost of sales B A (529,403) (718,595)
Gross profit EF 505,391 739,184
Other losses HoAhEE 9 (68,292) (19,982)
Other income HAA 10 53,705 41,624
Selling expenses S (444,765) (594,852)
General and administrative expenses — % AT (186,095) (237,428)
Other operating expenses HoA 728 3 (190,809) (19,101)
Finance costs A LA 11 (50,607) (24,920)
Loss before tax BRI ATES 1B 12 (381,472) (115,475)
Income tax expense JIr SR 3 15 (21,212) (28,967)
Loss for the year from continuing operations ~ FRFEEEXBNER (402,684) (144,442)
Discontinued operations RIEEEXK
Loss for the year from discontinued operations  4F A % I 3655 1Y 46 33 - (1,706)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations i % IF & 3B 1 i i 33 - 111,766
Profit for the year arising from discontinued ~ FR#& L& EEB R FHE
operations - 110,060
Loss for the year FREE (402,684) (34,382)
Attributable to: LU REAE
Equity holders of the Company E/NTILETEE RN (402,898) (34,551)
Non-controlling interests TP ek 2 214 169
(402,684) (34,382)
Loss attributable to the equity holders of RATESHE ABLEERE
the Company arising from:
— Continuing operations — FRUE TS (402,898) (144,611)
— Discontinued operations — KB - 110,060
(402,898) (34,551)
Loss per share BRER HK cents HK cents
From continuing operations REFELEXRK - Al
- Basic and diluted — R R 16 (38.50) (13.82)
From continuing and discontinued operations REFERKILEEEK
- Basic and diluted — AR R 16 (38.50) (3.30)

The notes on page 50 to 176 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

A EEREA o

50 176 EHAYMEEE A IS 4G MBS IR A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meETHEkER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%20204:3 431 H 1L
-

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 3E BT AT
Loss for the year FREE (402,684) (34,382)
Other comprehensive loss: Hitb2HEE :
Items that may be reclassified subsequently F-7% i] H 7740 2 14 7
to profit or loss: HIEH
Exchange differences of translation of ¥} 375 1 [ 56,26 45
foreign operations (42,789) 7,171
Release of exchange reserve upon He L S B AR
disposal of discontinued operations T .ty P i 11 33 - (14,978)
(42,789) (7,807)
Items that will not be reclassified HEANEENAHE
to profit or loss: R HIEH -
Gain on revaluation of property, PREUEDIZE - Heas I st
plant and equipment, net of tax 14 Al i it - 202,040
Change in fair value of equity RN T-(ELZE 2 FA 2 T i 4
investments at fair value through other IR A A4 & 1Y
comprehensive income A SR ) 22 (9,526) 2,596
(9,526) 204,636
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FRBRBIE
for the year, net of tax Hp2m (&8) Kk (52,315) 196,829
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FAZEEBR),WEEE
for the year (454,999) 162,447
Attributable to: LUT (L
Equity holders of the Company LN/l EnESZEDN (454,525) 163,211
Non-controlling interests FEPEIBHE A 474) (764)
(454,999) 162,447
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for &N AEHEFEAEEER
the year attributable to the equity 2EEE) WS EE
holders of the Company arising from: KA :
Continuing operations FRAUE s (454,525) 68,129
Discontinued operations b 2 - 95,082
(454,525) 163,211

The notes on page 50 to 176 are an integral part of these S50 176 FUAY M A A 45 G MBS IR AR
consolidated financial statements. A EER R o
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX
As at 31 March 2020 202043 H31H

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
i BT WA T
ASSETS aE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LERR T e G ] 17 131,315 165,411
Investment properties 'a-e7ES 18 519,800 586,100
Prepaid lease premium TEATHH 5 A 19 - 11,135
Right-of-use assets S 20 198,704 -
Intangible assets Eii31A v 21 57,541 65,633
Deferred tax assets R APl T 28 38,384 49,553
Equity investments at fair value through #0718 HA A T i 45
other comprehensive income HIHR A AR BUE 22 5,444 14,970
Deposits and prepayments P4 T T R0H 24 36,638 55,080
Total non-current assets FREBEELEE 987,826 947,882
Current assets REBEE
Inventories i 23 373,040 559,829
Trade and other receivables 25y B A REN R 3K 24 163,454 182,488
Pledged bank deposits HEAPSRAT A7 3K 25 54,579 56,649
Cash and cash equivalents Bl KBl EY) 25 127,016 234,869
Total current assets REEERAE 718,089 1,033,835
Total assets BERE 1,705,915 1,981,717
EQUITY BRfE
Capital and reserves attributable to the ~ ZNAFERFEABERAR
equity holders of the Company (N
Share capital il 26 104,647 104,647
Reserves Gl 27 425,799 880,324
Shareholders’ funds BRES 530,446 984,971
Non-controlling interests TP P 2t 6,655 7,129
Total equity REERE 537,101 992,100

B () A RA A 46
2020 4F4F- )



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEEAEX
As at 31 March 2020 2202043 H31H

2020 2019
Note HK$/000 HK$'000
Bt BEEAT T WA
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities PR AERLIE A 28 32,933 31,004
Lease liabilities iEN == 29 118,251 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEREE 151,184 31,004
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 B A E AT R 30 172,583 237,472
Income tax payable JREAT T A58 16,288 32,840
Bank and other borrowings SRAT B A B 31 651,449 688,301
Lease liabilities HEAMRE 29 177,310 -
Total current liabilities REBAEEE 1,017,630 958,613
Total liabilities E BB 1,168,814 989,617
Total equity and liabilities REREERE 1,705,915 1,981,717

The consolidated financial statements on page 44 to 176 were HHEIE2020%6 7 26 H AL L% & &R 544 5
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2020 and were 176 B &6 AT R 3% -
signed on its behalf.

Joseph C.C. Wong Wallace Kwan Chi Kin
=R AER
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
T RATECAH TTICHTH R BT P 75 A 7

The notes on page 50 to 176 are an integral part of these S50 H 176 FAYM M A 45 G MBS IR 1R
consolidated financial statements. Al SR o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FERREER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%20204:3 431 H 1L
-

Attributable to equity holders
of the company

AARERHEAELS
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital  Reserves Total interests equity

e @i act FERER EREER
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
g AT (4 TV -4 T (4§ DTV -3

(Note 27)

(f&E27)
At 1 April 2018 R2018F4 818 104,647 915,943 1,020,590 8,193 1,028,783
(Loss)/profit for the year R (EHR) - (34551)  (34,551) 169 (34,382)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) A2 ks, () - 197,762 197,762 933) 196,829
Dividend paid (note 32) TR (HE32) - (198,830)  (198,830) (300)  (199,130)
Changes in equity for the year FERSEH - (356190 (35619 (1,064)  (36,683)
At 31 March 2019 ®2019F3A318 104,647 880,324 984,971 7,129 992,100
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4A818 104,647 880,324 984,971 7,129 992,100
(Loss)/profit for the year AR (1) /R - (402,898)  (402,898) 214 (402,684)
Other comprehensive loss oAb 2R - (51,627)  (51,627) 688)  (52,315)
Changes in equity for the year FERGEH - (454,525)  (454,525) 474)  (454,999)
At 31 March 2020 #2020F3A318 104,647 425799 530,446 6,655 537,101

The notes on page 50 to 176 are an integral part of these B50E E176 E M A IS4 A MM EN AR
consolidated financial statements. CIER A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEREREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #%20204:3 431 H 1L

2020 2019
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Witk BT AT
Cash flows from operating activities EETHNRERE
Cash generated from operations G S 4 34(a) 228,101 127,813
Interest paid AR (50,607) (24,920)
Hong Kong profits tax paid S RSB 4,329) (8,825)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded E 28 [ A i F A5 10 40
Overseas profits tax paid AT ARG BE (15,641) (25,023)
Overseas profits tax refunded B EYEIREZ] VIR G 1,551 492
Net cash generated from EETHMENRERRE
operating activities 159,085 69,577
Cash flows from investing activities REFHNRERE
Purchase of property, WA ~ B St
plant and equipment (11,446) (31,723)
Proceeds from disposal of property, MY - W i s
plant and equipment A 897 2,737
Interest received e ALE 836 1,096
Dividends received EL s S 1,014 2,798
Proceeds from disposal of business H B 25 TS A H 33 - 340,013
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETH (A FEHRE
investing activities FEE (8,699) 314,921
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHNRERE
Drawdown of bank borrowings FRIURAT B 143,357 215,725
Repayment of bank borrowings ERERAT B (180,158) (485,907)
Capital element of finance lease BT A&
payments - (58)
Principal portion of lease payment ST B A AR Ay (192,316) -
Increase in pledged bank deposits HEAPSRAT ARG - (56,649)
Dividend paid EARE - (198,830)
Net cash used in financing activities RMEEBMANRESFE (229,117) (525,719)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents B4 K BLa 55 HY) D 1F4E (78,731) (141,221)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning  FHIIY B & B &5 (E Y
of the year 234,869 382,997
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 3% 55 B) ff) g 2 (29,122) (6,907)
Cash and cash equivalents at FERNRERAEEEY
end of the year 127,016 234,869
Analysis of balances of cash RERRESEYER
and cash equivalents: B
Cash and cash equivalents — & KB &% EY 25 127,016 234,869
The notes on page 50 to 176 are an integral part of these S50 2176 FUAY MM AR 45 G MBS IR 1O R

consolidated financial statements.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020

BETS IR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, Hamilton, HM11 2 Church Street, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The principal activity of Stelux Holdings International
Limited (the “Company”) is investment holding. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are shown in Note 39
to consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group incurred
a net loss of approximately HK$402.684 million as of
that date, the Group recorded net current liabilities of
approximately HK$299.541 million.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the current and anticipated future liquidity of the Group
and the ability of the Group to continue to attain profitable
and positive cash flows from operations in the immediate
and longer terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS R R B o
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Included in current liabilities are bank borrowings of
HK$651.449 million which contain a repayment on
demand clause. Based on the Group’s credit history
and historical relationship with the banks, the executive
directors do not believe that it is probable that the banks
will demand immediate repayment but rather such bank
borrowings will be repaid in accordance with their
scheduled repayment dates as disclosed in Note 6.1(d).
Accordingly, principal and interest payments due within
the next twelve months from the reporting date will amount
to HK$138.961 million.

In order to strengthen the Group’s liquidity in the
foreseeable future, the directors of the Company have taken
measures such as, closing down under-performing retail
stores; and implementing various cost control measures in
order to reduce the costs of operations.

The directors of the Company have taken into account the
cash requirements of the Group for the next twelve months
from the end of the reporting period, unutilised banking
facilities of approximately HK$192 million as at 31 March
2020, other potential sources of funding, and the above
measures, and therefore the directors have concluded that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to meet in
full its financial obligations as they fall due during that
period. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

STELUX Holdings International Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
g s b

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(@)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a new HKFRS, HKFRS 16
Leases, and a number of amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group.

Except for HKFRS 16, none of the developments have
had a material effect on how the Group’s results and
financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented. The Group has not
applied any new standard or interpretation that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 supersedes HKAS 17 Leases, and the
related interpretations, HK(IFRIC) 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)
15 Operating Leases-Incentives and HK(SIC) 27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. HKFRS 16 introduced a
single accounting model for lessees, which requires
a lessee to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability for all leases, except for leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-
value assets.

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases
using similar principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore,
HKFRS 16 did not have an impact or leases where
the Group is the lessor. The lessor accounting
requirements are brought forward from HKAS 17
substantially unchanged.

HKFRS 16 also introduces additional qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to
enable users of the financial statements to assess
the effect that leases have on the financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of an entity.

3.
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